9:06:49 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltz
to order at 9:0

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

6HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 31, 2010
9:06 a. m

e called the House Finance Comm ttee neeting
6 a.m

M ke Hawker,
Bill Stoltze,
Bill Thomas Jr.,
Al | an Aust er man
M ke Doogan
Anna Faircl ough
Neal Foster

Les Gara

Reggi e Joul e

M ke Kelly
Whodi e Sal nmon

Co-Chair
Co- Chair
Vi ce-Chair

Tom Wight, Staff, Speaker Chenault; Mry Siroky, Special
Assi stant, Departnment of Transportation; Tom Wight, Staff,
Speaker M ke Chenault; Carri Lockhart, Production Mnager,
Marat hon Q1| Conpany; Marcia Davis, Deputy Comm ssioner,
Depart ment of Revenue

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None

SUVMVARY

HB 7 ROBERT E. BUSH VETERANS' NMEMORI AL BRI DGE

House Fi nance Conmmittee

03/31/10 9:06 A M



CS HB 7 (TRA) was REPORTED out of Conmittee
with a "do pass" recomendation and the
previ ously published fiscal note: FN1 (DOT)

HB 229 GAS EXPLORATI ON\ DEVELOPMENT TAX CREDI T

CS HB 229 (RES) was HEARD and HELD in
Committee for further consideration.

9: 07: 00 AM

#hb7
HOUSE BILL NO. 7

"An Act namng the bridge over the Kasilof River on
the Sterling Hghway the Robert E Bush, Jr.,
Veterans' Menorial Bridge."

9:07:28 AM

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, SPEAKER CHENAULT, explained that the
Uncl e of Robert E. Bush, Jr. requested the bridge be naned
for Robert E. Bush, Jr. Robert Bush passed away on July 12,
2007, after serving in the US Arny during Operation Desert
Storm When he returned hone upon his discharge, he was
di agnosed with Type 1 D abetes, which eventually clainmed
his |ife. H's children drove the Kasilof River Bridge
daily, and nanmng the bridge in his honor would remnd his
famly and the public of his contribution to the comunity
and country. He stated that there are petitions from
nmenbers of the community of Kasilof signed in favor of the
bri dge nam ng

9: 08: 40 AM

Representative Kelly asked if anyone in Kasilof was opposed
to the bridge namng. M. Wight responded that there were
some who opposed the nanme change, but there was no official
testinmony in opposition.

Co-Chair Stoltze closed public testinony.

9:09:55 AM

MARY S| RCKY, SPECI AL ASSI STANT, DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATI ON explained the fiscal note for the street
signs and installation. The signs would be brown, in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/31/10 9:06 A M



conpliance with historic and recreation sign custom and
noted they will be on both sides of the street.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked if this would be consistent wth
ot her nmenorial signs. Ms. Siroky indicated yes.

9:11: 26 AM

Vice-Chair Thomas MOVED to Report CS HB 7 (TRA) out of
Comm ttee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so order ed.

CS HB 7 (TRA) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recommendation and the previously published fiscal
note: FN1 (DOT)

9:12:10 AM

#hb229
HOUSE BILL NO. 229

"An Act anending and extending the exploration and
devel opment incentive tax credit under the Al aska Net
I ncone Tax Act for operators and working interest
owners directly engaged in the exploration for and
devel opment of gas for delivery and sale from a | ease
or property in the state; providing for an effective
date by anending the effective date for sec. 2, ch.
61, SLA 2003; and providing for an effective date."

9:12: 24 AM

TOM WRI GHT, STAFF, SPEAKER M KE CHENAULT, presented an
overview of the HB 229. He explained that the bill would
amend and extend the exploration and devel opnent incentive
tax that was originally enacted in 2003. The tax credit
woul d continue to apply under the Al aska Net |ncone Tax Act
for operators and working interest owners, who are directly
engaged in the exploration for and devel opnent of natural
gas in the Cool Inlet, to nore strongly encourage conpanies
to invest additional capital in new gas reserves. The
| egislation would make the following changes to current
law. it would increase the amount of credit from 10 percent
to 25 percent of the ambunt of qualified capital investnent
and qualified services spending; it would renove the 50
percent limtation on the anpbunt of credits in a single
year, which would increase the tinme value of noney for the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/31/10 9:06 A M



credit; it would renove the successful efforts requirenent
that disallows the credit for wells that are drilled with
all the sanme cost, but end up being non-productive; it
would clarify that credits can be taken in a current tax
return, a tinely filed tax return, or a tinely tax return
filed for the year imediately following the year the
qualified tax investnent was made; it would clarify that
credits can be applied to a gas reserve, regardless of
whether or not there was previous gas production in the
area; it would clarify that credits apply to North Slope
gas that has been brought into South-central Al aska; and it
extends the sunset date of the investnent tax credit from
January 1, 2013 to January 1 2020. The bill mkes no
changes to definitions of qualified capital investnents or
gualified services. The annual natural gas production and
supply in the Cook Inlet was in decline, but demand was
increasing. He remarked that the original investnent tax
credit was only a nodest success; he stressed expandi ng the
tax credit to allow for much greater success in
devel opnent. He hoped the changes outlined in the bill
woul d achieve that goal. He pointed out that under Al aska
Statute (AS) 4320-043, which was the original bill that was
passed in 2003, there was no allowance for double tax
credits, or "double dipping."

9:15:56 AM

Representative Gara wondered why sonmeone woul d choose the
10 percent credit in the bill, over a 20 percent credit
witten in current legislation. M. Wight deferred to
Carri Lockhart.

Representative Fairclough renmarked that one bill requires a
di scl osure of all geological and technical information, and
the other bill does not.

9:17:19 AM

Representative Gara remarked that explorers and devel opers
wait for supply contracts to expire, so a new market opens
up. He wondered how that scenario would relate to the need
for tax credits. M. Wight deferred to Carri Lockhart.

Vice-Chair Thomas referred to current |egislation regarding
an in state gas pipeline, and wondered if that m ght have
an inmpact on the proposed tax credit sunset date of January
1, 2020. M. Wight explained that the hope for HB 229

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/31/10 9:06 A M



woul d be a stop-gap neasure, because gas |ine production

was still unsure. He remarked that there were not nmany well
defined fields in the Cook Inlet, so it is expensive to
drill and explore the broad areas for the gas pockets.
9:21:05 AM

CARRI LOCKHART, PRODUCTI ON MANAGER, MARATHON O L COVPANY,
stated that the focus of Mrathon G| Conpany's Al aska
Operation is natural gas production operations, limted to
the Cook Inlet. In 2009, natural gas sales from Al aska
averaged about 87 mllion cubic feet a day. It sold to
| ocal utilities: En- St ar El ectri c, Chugach Electric,
Tesoro, and the Departnent of Defense. It also provided
natural gas to the Conoco Philips Marathon LNG plant.
Mar at hon had been in business for Al aska for over 55 years,
and she stressed that the conpany is conmtted to South-
central Al aska's natural gas needs through current
contractual commtments. She remarked that tax incentives
are inperative, because of the long-term decline in natural
gas reserves and deliverability. She remarked that it is
unlikely that Cook Inlet reserve additions would replace
annual production on an ongoing |long-term basis. As such

natural gas reserves and deliverability were at risk for
continued decline at Cook Inlet, which could result in
exposure to unnet wutility needs. There is a history of
oversupply of natural gas from the Cook Inlet, which kept
the price of gas below the |ower 48 indexed prices. As of
|ate, the regulatory processes and deterioration in market
avai lability have added to project uncertainty. She pointed
to key issues to ensure the reliability of natural gas in
Sout h-central Al aska: storage; market access and certainty;
and economc projects. She believed HB 229 would i npact
econom c projects. She noted that Marathon projects in
Al aska conpete globally for finite funding, and stated that
HB 229 would Ilevel the playing field between Al aska
projects and other investnent opportunities. Mar at hon
believed that HB 229 is one part of the equation to enhance
Cook Inlet exploration and developnent activities. She
reiterated that in order to qualify for the investnent tax
credit, the producer nust nmake capital investnents, which
woul d add val ue back to the state.

9: 26: 40 AM

Representative Austerman queried the inpact of the tax
incentive in decisions Marathon m ght make in new

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/31/10 9:06 A M



explorations. M. Lockhart replied that a 25 percent tax
credit on expenditures does have an inpact on overal
expenditures, but was unsure if it would be influential
enough for projects to conpete at the corporate |evel.

Representative Austerman Ms. Lockhart responded that there
was a portfolio of projects that Marathon assesses from a
risk  managenent per specti ve. She noted that t hose
portfolios change, depending on wells that are drilled in
advance. Sone wells have continuing projects, based on the
success of the well; sone projects get elimnated, if the
wells fail. Wether a project materializes in the near
future is based on market availability. Mrathon is
attenpting to secure new contracts. If those contracts are
not secured the tax incentive nmay not natter, because there
woul d be no market for the gas.

9:30:10 AM

In response to a question by Representative Kelly, M.
Lockhart stated that the anmount of regulations on the
marketing side is a challenge for producers. She remarked
that there are not many service providers in Al aska, so
conpetition for service is high; therefore services often
come fromthe | ower 48

9:32: 54 AM

Representative Gara illumnated that there was not a
current over-supply issue, and wondered if that was a
benefit to Marathon. Ms. Lockhart stated that if supply and
demand market functions in Al aska were the sanme as those in
the lower 48, then it would Ilikely benefit Marathon.

Furt her nore, the regulations in Alaska restrict the
benefits. If producers do not have a return on their
investnment, they will choose not to invest, and the decline
wi Il continue.

In response to a question by Representative GGra, M.
Lockhart stated there are nmany factors that gauge the
mar ketability of gas. She pointed to conplex technol ogies,
risks, and deterioration of reservoirs. There was a higher
cost for resource recovery, because there was not as mnuch
gas as there used to be.

9:35:42 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/31/10 9:06 A M



Representative Gara asked how long the contracts will |ast
for the Cook Inlet. M. Lockhart responded that she was
unsure, but stated that she had seen a study revealing a
gap starting in the next two years highlighting utility
needs.

Representative Gara wondered if wutilities wait for their
contracts to expire, before they ask for nore exploring.
Ms. Lockhart replied that utilities are proactive 1in
seeking new supply contracts, at the sanme tinme producers
are proactive in securing outlets.

9: 37: 38 AM

Co- Chair Hawker asked if wutilities in South-central Al aska
were frustrated by the regulatory conmm ssion. M. Lockhart
responded that there had been three contracts before the
regul atory comm ssion; two of which were long term
contracts, and were denied. She renmarked that these denials
had created uncertainty in Mrathon's business. Because
contracts have been denied, Mrathon has cut back its
i nvestnment in Cook Inlet.

In response to a question by Representative GGra, M.
Lockhart declared that Marathon would be drilling, if the
contracts were not denied by the regulatory conm ssion.

Representative Gara wondered if Marathon was confident they
would fine a gas supply, even though gas resources are
unsure. M. Lockhart replied that Marathon would have made
a conmtment investnent to be sure the needs of the
utilities were net.

9:40: 29 AM

Co-Chair Hawker queried the success rate of current
drilling operations. M. Lockhart stated that was never a
100 percent success rate. Some |evels of hydro carbon are
encountered in nobst cases, but economc expectations are
nost often not net. Expectations are based on the reservoir
and risks related to the drilling projects.

Co-chair Hawker asserted that there is risk in drilling.
Ms. Lockhart agreed, and explained that as exploration of
reservoirs encroach the borders, the wells becone higher
risk.

9:42: 21 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/31/10 9:06 A M



Representative Fairclough reported that she was involved in
the Regul atory Comm ssion of Al aska (RCA) rulings, when the
two contracts were denied, as well as discussions wth
utilities. In those neetings, it was acknow edged that gas
supply in 2012 would be greatly depleted. The Regul atory
Comm ssion of Alaska believed the investnent required to
nmeet the gas requirenent was too high for the consuners in
Anchorage. Because of that observation, she believed the
denial was based on cost to the consuner. She specifically
asked for an explanation of the conplexities of geol ogical
and technical data that was rel eased under production tax.

9:44: 37 AM

Ms. Lockhart replied that under the current production tax
i ncentives, geological data nust be disclosed. The data is
equated to a trade secret of a conpany. It is collected
over years, and it is analyzed and interpreted in order to
determ ne an assessnment. After a certain period of tineg,
that data is released for public viewing. Mirathon has a
problem with giving the public access to their private
trade secrets. There are two sets of data: geophysical and
well-log data. Current statute requires well-log data be
released to the public domain after 24 nonths, and
geophysical data is released after 10 years. She renmarked
that 10 years is a very short period of tine.

9:46: 59 AM

Representative Austerman wondered if doing away wth
Regul atory Comm ssion of Alaska, rather than passing the
bill mght result in nore drilling. M. Lockhart chose to
treat the inquiry as rhetorical.

Representative Fairclough stated that while she was in
Regul atory Comm ssion of Al aska discussions, she did not
see the data the Regulatory Conm ssion of Alaska used to
make its final decision. Ms. Lockhart stated that over past
18 nonths, there had been extensive dial ogues. She pointed
out that are many different roles to fix the problem
Regul at ory Comm ssion of Alaska, utilities, producers, and
the state. The comobn goal is to neet the demand and
reliability. She remarked that the Regul atory Conm ssion of
Al aska has approved projects, and they carefully consider
strategic inplications on tactical decisions. She said that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/31/10 9:06 A M



HB 229 would further progress developnment, but it is not
the sole answer to the fuel shortage.

9:50: 26 AM

Representative Gara asked if the denied contracts would
have net En-star's five and ten year demand. M. Lockhart
believed that the five year contract would have fulfilled
unnmet needs through 2016, but could not reply regarding the
10 year contract.

Representative Gara wondered how one commits to a five year
gas supply contract, when the gas is not already avail abl e.
Ms. Lockhart stated that it is a risked business. Various
factors go into determning portfolios. Production profiles
constantly change, and are considered when determ ning
contract conmtnents.

Representative Gara wondered what happens if the gas that
is promised is not recovered. Ms. Lockhart replied that the
producer can purchase gas from other conpanies or keep
drilling.

9:53:18 AM

Representative Fairclough shared that in her experience
with the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska the wutilities
typically do not request contracts from only one producer.
Uilities normally submt nultiple contracts with various
producers, to ensure availability of the resource. She
nmenti oned that the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska recently
faced an issue pertaining to the high cost of gas for the
consuner, and that the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska did
not approve the contracts because of the cost.

9:54:48 AM

Representative Gara thought it would be in the best
interest of his constituents and Al aska to receive the
geophysical data if Marathon was to receive a tax credit.
That way, sustainability knowl edge 1is naintained. He
asserted that the legislature's purpose is not to protect
the interest of the industry, but for the protection of the
gas supply for consuners. M. Lockhart replied that the
state is benefited from the additional resource and reserve

producti on. She restated that the release of t he
geophysical and well-log data is problematic for the
pr oducer.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/31/10 9:06 A M



9:58: 43 AM

Represent ati ve Doogan wondered how the corporate inconme tax
credit would be used by the producer. MARCIA DAVIS, DEPUTY
COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, stated that the 25
percent credit is based on the capital expenditures and
services. Once that volune is determ ned, the 25 percent is
used to offset up to 100 percent the corporate incone tax,
until the credit expires.

Representati ve Doogan asked how the tax credit is applied
pertaining strictly to drilling attenpts. Ms. Davis replied
that if the producer avails thenselves of the 25 percent
corporate income tax credit, they would not be able to use
t he sanme expenditures under a production or exploration tax
credit.

10: 02: 48 AM

Represent ati ve Doogan wondered if one mght be eligible for
future credits, once the 25 percent corporate incone tax
credit is used. Ms. Davis replied that one particular wel
may have many different tax credits applied to it, because
different kinds of expenditures will be used through the
life of the well.

10: 05: 04 AM

Representative Austerman referred to the current 10 percent
tax credit currently witten in law. He queried the nobney
that had been used against the 10 percent tax credit, and
requested an extrapol ati on agai nst the proposed increase to
the 25 percent tax credit. Ms. Davis replied that the only
way to do a history of who has utilized the 10 percent tax
credit, tedious physical exam nations of corporate incone
tax returns and cal cul ati ons woul d be required.

Representative Austerman would like to know the dollar
value to previous tax credit bills, not limted to gas
related tax credit bills. He enphasized the inportance of
obtaining that information, in order to determne the
fiscal inpact on the state. Co-Chair Stoltze agreed.

Representative Austerman assuned the Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) was tracking all of the tax credit information. M.
Davis reiterated that DOR was not tracking the tax credits,
because they did not have the capabilities to manually

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/31/10 9:06 A M



exanm ne and calculate every corporate incone tax return.
She remarked that DOR is at a disadvantage when supporting
the legislature, because they are without that information.
She asserted that Representative Austerman's request for
cal cul ations and data were reasonable, but DOR was w thout
t hat resource.

10: 08: 13 AM

Co-Chair Hawker remarked that approximately $3 mllion
dol |l ars was appropriated three years prior, for the purpose
of accunulating the requested data. He wondered why that
noney had not been used. M. Davis responded that the $3
mllion was used to upgrade notor fuel, excise tax, and
corporate incone tax. The $3 nmillion would not be
i nadequate to provide a system requested by Representative
Aust er man.

Co- Chair Hawker pointed out that when HB 61 passed in the
2003 Legislature, DOR affirnmed that they would provide a
conplete report in 2009 on the effect of the tax credit
under HB 61. He asked if that report was conpleted. M.
Davis affirnmed that the report was conpleted, and agreed to
provide the report at a later tine.

Representative Austernman wondered if DOR |ooks at every
piece of legislation pertaining to corporate inconme tax.
Ms. Davis replied that there were many current bills that
affect either production or corporate incone tax, and DOR
carefully exam nes the data, as is feasible with man power.

Representative Austerman stressed providing DOR wth nore
noney and capabilities to extrapolate data related to the
production and corporate incone tax.

10: 10: 42 AM

Co- Chair Hawker argued that the |egislature faces decisions
based on revenue generation and decisions based on the
public good. He enphasized that half the population is in
need of natural gas, and that a bal ance shoul d be nmade when
determ ni ng what noney can be used towards a greater good.

Representative Austerman agreed that he was not arguing
health and safety issues, and understood that gas is
needed. He just wanted to be given accurate information, so
he understood the fiscal inpact of his decisions.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/31/10 9:06 A M



Representative Gara asked if DOR had an estimate of how
much noney had been received for corporate incone tax from
Cook Inlet over the two years prior. M. Davis agreed to
provide that information. She furthered that that the
information would only be rough estinate, because corporate
income tax is done on a proportionate basis of gl obal
i ncome based on a factor anal ysis.

Co- Chair Hawker queried how the state apportions worl d-w de
incone. Ms. Davis replied that corporate incone tax from
oil and gas is a ratio of the corporate global incone. The
return is a a fraction of the Al aska payroll, a fraction of
Al aska properties against total property, and ot her
incorporating factors. Once that ratio is determned, it is
multiplied by the total income to determne Al aska's share
of the incone.

10: 13: 58 AM

Representative Gara wondered if the credits can be conbined
with other deductions or royalty nodifications. M. Davis
replied the production tax is determned by applying the
tax rate against the net income. The costs are |ease
expenditures in subtracting costs out of the proceeds, to
determ ne the production tax value. The tax rate is then
applied against the tax value. Therefore, the |ease
expenditures are wused in deriving the tax value, which
determnes the oil and gas production tax under Al aska's
Cl ear and Equitabl e Share (ACES).

In response to a question by Representative Gara, M. Davis
stated that tax payers in Cook Inlet pay the Economc Limt
Factor (ELF) rate, rather than the calculated rate under
t he production tax.

Representative Gara wondered if there were any other
expenditures derived from the royalty. M. Davis replied
royalty relief negotiations would occur before new costs
are incurred. Production costs would not inpact the royalty
cost s.

In response to a question by Representative Gara, M. Davis
believed that royalty relief can occur anywhere in the
state.

10:17: 49 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/31/10 9:06 A M



Representative Joule asked how the tax credit would inpact
the work force. Ms. Davis responded that any tinme there is

a credit, noney is spent. The credit was fornulated, in
order to encourage production and spending. The target of
the bill is Cook Inlet gas devel opnent, and the state is

essentially giving the producers a discount on the
production costs. The state would lose a bit of its
corporate incone tax due to the 25 percent tax credit, but
the 75 percent of the cost incurred by the conmpany, is used
to presumably hire enployees and continue to operate and
produce oil .

10: 21: 28 AM

Co- Chair Hawker wondered if a tax payer avails thenselves
of the investnment tax credit under HB229, they would be
prohibited from receiving royalty nodifications provided
under any other title. Ms. Davis affirned that is correct.

Co- Chair Hawker surm sed that anyone who avails thensel ves
of investnment tax credit against the corporate incone tax
under HB229 woul d be prohibited from claimng any other tax
credit or royalty nodification under any other statute. Ms.
Davis replied that is correct.

CSHB 229 (RES) was HEARD and HELD in Conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#

ADJ OQURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10:24 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/31/10 9:06 A M



